
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance, please contact Debbie Dedeaux at 225.774.5795 to 
describe the assistance that is necessary. 

City of Baker School Board  
Board Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, September 5, 2023, 6:00 P.M. 
School Board Office 

Joyce Burges, President – Presiding 
“Education is the passport to the future, for tomorrow belongs to those who prepare for it today” — Malcolm X 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING/MEETING 

      Notice Posted:  ____________________  Time:_____________________ 

I. A Public Hearing will be held as follows:

DATE September 5, 2023 
TIME: 6:00 P.M. 
PLACE OF MEETING: City of Baker School Board Office, Board Room 

14750 Plank Road 
Baker, LA  70714 

Open Public Hearing 

1. A Public Hearing will be held to consider approval of the City of Baker School Board
Proposed Operating Budget for 2023-2024.

2. Public questions or comments.

Close Public Hearing 

II. A Public Meeting will be held as follows:
DATE: September 5, 2023 
TIME: 6:15 p.m. or immediately after Public Hearing 
PLACE OF MEETING: City of Baker School Board Office, Board Room 

14750 Plank Road 
Baker, LA  70714 

A. Meeting Commencement
1. Call to Order
2. Roll Call
3. Silent Meditation
4. Pledge of Allegiance

B. Welcome of Visitors
C. Recognitions

1. Back to School Participants/Sponsors
D. Approval of Agenda (Action)
E. Action Items-The public may comment on Action Items. Public Comment is limited to 2 minutes per individual.

1. Consideration and Approval of Minutes from the School Board Meeting of August 1st and Special Meeting August
7th, 2023.

2. Consideration and Approval of Property Insurance for August 31, 2023 through August 31, 2024.
3. Consideration and Approval of 2023-2024 City of Baker School System Operating Budget.



In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance, please contact Debbie Dedeaux at 225.774.5795 to 
describe the assistance that is necessary. 

4. Consideration and Approval of Settlement of a personal injury matter involving Joann Rogers.  (Action) *Board
may vote to go into Executive Session.

5. Consideration and Approval of the following contracts for Exceptional Student Services:
1. Contract with Empower Physical Therapy and Wellness for Physical Therapy services.
2. Contract with Step-by-Step Therapeutic Services for Adapted Physical Education (APE) services.
3. Contract with Mary Thibodeaux for a Gifted/Talented & Homebound Teacher

6. Consideration and Approval of Bid for Lawn Care Services to Rotolo Consultants for lawn care during the 2023-
2024 school year.

F. Information Items
1. Superintendent's Report on Personnel
2. LSU Attendance
3. Policy B-4 Officers of the Board- Policy Review

G. Announcements
1. Date of Next Meeting – October 3, 2023

H. Superintendent’s Report
1. Enrollment

I. Adjournment (Action)



City of Baker School System
School Board Meeting
Tuesday, September 5, 2023

Type of Item:

Consideration and Approval of Minutes 

Action

Move to approve the minutes from the School Board Meeting of August 
1, 2023, and August 7, 2023.

Background Information:

Agenda Item:

The Board needs to accept the approve the minutes from the August Board Meetings

Possible Motion: 

Attached Items: 
August 7the Meeting Minutes
August 1st Meeting Minutes













Background Information:

Agenda Item:

The board will need to approve the Property Insurance bid for 23-24

Possible Motion: 

Attached Items: Property Insurance Renewal

City of Baker School System
School Board Meeting
Tuesday, September 5, 2023

Type of Item:

Property Insurance

Action





Entity Name Loc. Bldg. Address Occupancy Const. Type Year Built

Last Year 
Roofs 

Updated

 Bldg. 
Cost per 
Sq. Ft. Sq. Ft. Building Value Contents Value EDP/EQUIP TOTAL TIV 

Baker High School( - New Field House) 1 3 3200 Groom Road Athletic Field House/Home Masonry NC 2018 2018 150$      3010 451,500.000$                   451,500.00$                     
Baker High School (Building C) 1 6 3200 Groom Road Auditorium (old) Masonry NC 1947 2001 150$      16000 2,400,000.000$                2,400,000.00$                  

Baker High School (storage) 1 3200 Groom Road Storage Masonry NC 2018 2018 150$      1500 225,000.000$                   75,000.00$                    300,000.00$                     
Baker High School 1 8 3200 Groom Road Stadium incl Press boxes Masonry NC 1971 2001 150$      3960 594,000.000$                   20,790.00$                    614,790.00$                     

Baker High School (Griffin Building D) 1 4 3200 Groom Road Band/Choral Masonry NC 1947- 2024 Renovated 2001 150$      5932 889,800.00$                     -$                                889,800.00$                     
Baker High School (Shop - Building E) 1 12 3200 Groom Road Welding Building Masonry NC 2001-2024 Renovated 2001 150$      8632 1,294,800.00$                  -$                                1,294,800.00$                  

Baker High School (Building A) 1 13 3200 Groom Road
Administration/ Gymnasium/ 
Classrooms Masonry NC 1975-2024 Renovated 2008 150$      44944 6,741,600.00$                  -$                                6,741,600.00$                  

550 HP Chromebook 11 G5 Computers/18 
Edugear Mobilab Storage & Charging Carts 1 16 Blanket locations EDP n/a n/a n/a -$       n/a 252,612.00$             252,612.00$                     

145 HP Chromebook 14 G5 Laptops 1 17 Blanket locations EDP n/a n/a n/a -$       n/a 33,474.00$                33,474.00$                        
Baker Junior High School 2 1 5903 Groom Road Main Building/Gym Masonry NC 1966 2005 150$      82369 12,355,350.000$              4,733,799.00$               17,089,149.00$                

Bakerfield Elementary School 3 1 2550 South Street Auditorium/Gymnasium Masonry NC 1957 150$      6052 907,800.000$                   66,675.00$                    974,475.00$                     
Bakerfield Elementary School 3 2 2550 South Street Main Office Masonry NC 1957 150$      3228 484,200.000$                   118,650.00$                  602,850.00$                     
Bakerfield Elementary School 3 3 2550 South Street Classroom A Masonry NC 1957 150$      7410 1,111,500.000$                195,328.00$                  1,306,828.00$                  
Bakerfield Elementary School 3 4 2550 South Street Classroom B Masonry NC 1957 150$      7410 1,111,500.000$                195,328.00$                  1,306,828.00$                  
Bakerfield Elementary School 3 5 2550 South Street Classroom Addition Masonry NC 1972 150$      9088 1,363,200.000$                235,858.00$                  1,599,058.00$                  

Baker Heights Elementary School 4 1 3750 Harding Street Gymnasium Masonry NC 1960 150$      9180 1,377,000.000$                74,655.00$                    1,451,655.00$                  
Baker Heights Elementary School 4 2 3750 Harding Street Classroom A Masonry NC 1960 150$      7260 1,089,000.000$                187,656.00$                  1,276,656.00$                  
Baker Heights Elementary School 4 3 3750 Harding Street Classroom B Masonry NC 1960 150$      7260 1,089,000.000$                187,656.00$                  1,276,656.00$                  
Baker Heights Elementary School 4 4 3750 Harding Street Classroom C Masonry NC 1960 150$      7260 1,089,000.000$                187,656.00$                  1,276,656.00$                  
Baker Heights Elementary School 4 5 3750 Harding Street Classroom Addition Masonry NC 1975 150$      3404 510,600.000$                   94,522.00$                    605,122.00$                     
Baker Heights Elementary School 4 6 3750 Harding Street Guidance/Library Masonry NC 1971 150$      5616 842,400.000$                   532,140.00$                  1,374,540.00$                  
Baker Heights Elementary School 5 7 3751 Harding Street Buildings 1 Frame 75$        900 67,500.000$                     5,000.00$                       Incl. In Contents 72,500.00$                        
Baker Heights Elementary School 8 3752 Harding Street Buildings 2 Frame 75$        900 67,500.000$                     5,000.00$                       Incl. In Contents 72,500.00$                        
Baker Heights Elementary School 3753 Harding Street T-Bldg. Frame 75$        900 67,500.000$                     5,000.00$                       Incl. In Contents 72,500.00$                        
Baker Heights Elementary School 3754 Harding Street T-Bldg. Frame 75$        900 67,500.000$                     5,000.00$                       Incl. In Contents 72,500.00$                        
Baker Heights Elementary School 3755 Harding Street T-Bldg. Frame 75$        900 67,500.000$                     5,000.00$                       Incl. In Contents 72,500.00$                        
Baker Heights Elementary School 3756 Harding Street T-Bldg. Frame 75$        900 67,500.000$                     5,000.00$                       Incl. In Contents 72,500.00$                        

Parkridge Elementary School 5 1 5905 Groom Road Main Building Masonry NC 1967 150$      29468 4,420,200.000$                736,302.00$                  5,156,502.00$                  
Parkridge Elementary School 5 2 5905 Groom Road Classroom Addition Joisted Mas. 1972 125$      2408 361,200.000$                   106,932.00$                  468,132.00$                     
Parkridge Elementary School 5 3 6009 Groom Road Altenative School - Vacant Frame 125$      1000 150,000.000$                   31,500.00$                    181,500.00$                     

Administration 6 1 14750 Plank Road Administration Masonry  1984 150$      12766 1,914,900.000$                150,000.00$                  2,064,900.00$                  
ALC- Alternative Learning Center 6 2 14750 Plank Road ALC Steel Frame 1984 125$      19322 2,898,300.000$                100,000.00$                  2,998,300.00$                  

Blended Learning Center 6 3 14750 Plank Road Classroom Masonary NC 1984 150$      900 135,000.000$                   5,000.00$                       140,000.00$                     
46,211,850.00$      8,065,447.00$     286,086.00$     54,563,383.00$      



Background Information:

Agenda Item:

The board needs to approve the 2023-2024 Operating Budget.

Attached Items: 2023-2024 CoBSS Operating Budget.

City of Baker School System
School Board Meeting
Tuesday, September 5, 2023

Type of Item:

Operating Budget

Action















































Background Information:

Agenda Item:

The board needs to approve the settlement with Joann Rogers.

Attached Items: 

City of Baker School System
School Board Meeting
Tuesday, September 5, 2023

Type of Item:

Legal Settlement

Action



Ms. Rogers grandson parked at 5903 Groom Road at Baker High. He was helping students in the band. 
He was not in the vehicle. The location as you will see in the photos is part of the culture at this school 
to park in this area. Further up there are signs locating an area for them not park. There is no marking of 
paint or signs in this area where the vehicle was parked, not to park.    
The 2009 Toyota Camry was hit on the rear side Qtr. Panel. We sent Frontier Adjusters out to write us an 
estimate of the damages. The vehicle is considered a total loss. The claimant has agreed to settle for the 
value of the vehicle. Accident report is attached. There was no damage to the bus. 
 
Total claim amount $5,707.32 and Frontier Adjusters $170.00. 
 



City of Baker School System
School Board Meeting
Tuesday, September 5, 2023

Type of Item:

ESS Contracts

Action

contract with Empower Physical Therapy
contract with Step by Step Therapeutic Services 

Background Information:

Agenda Item:

The Exceptional Services Department needs to approve contracts for Adapted 
Physical Education (APE) services, Physical Therapy, and Homebond Services. 

Attached Items: 



STATE OF LOUISIANA 

EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH 

CITY OF BAKER SCHOOL SYSTEM 

CONTRACT E._OR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

BE IT KNOWN THAT this agreement is entered into in the above identified Parish by and between 
The City of Baker School System, located at 14750 Plank Road, Baker, Louisiana 70714, (hereinafter 
sometimes simply referred to as "COBSS"), and Empower Physical Therapy and Wellness and whose mailing 
address is PO BOX 74732, Baton Rouge, LA. 70874 (hereinafter sometimes simply referred to as 
"Contractor"). 

1. 

Contractor hereby agrees to furnish the following: 

=>l)ati'3Iia 
.. , - ,.

August 28, 2023, through 
May 24, 2024 

SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITIES: 

Provides virtual or face-to-face Physical 
Therapy services to students of the City of 
Baker School System as indicated by 
evaluations and agreed upon by IBP 
committees. Maintains professional licenses to 
practice Physical Therapy services in the State 
of Louisiana. Complete all testing, therapeutic 
intervention, and documentation necessary to 
serve the student referred or already on the 
caseload, as personnel is available. Collects and 
compiles data as needed for the department, 
district, state, and federal reports. 

RESPONSIBILITIES/FUNCTIONS: 

•• Serves as a member of a multi-disciplinary
team and provides appropriate assessments
for the identification of student's needs and
provides written reports within the required
timelines in compliance with Bulletin 1508 
guidelines and local policies and procedures

• Evaluate students with disabilities by
performing and interpreting tests and
measurements and/or clinical observations
of neurophysiological, musculoskeletal,
sensorimotor functions and daily living
skills.

• Plans and implements treatment strategies
for students based on evaluation findings.

·• Sets goals targeting improving, developing, 
restoring, or maintaining functions impaired 
or lost through illness, injury, or 
deprivation. 

• Sets goals targeting improving or 
maintaining ability to perform tasks for
independent functioning when functions are
impaired or lost.

• Administers and supervises therapeutic

Pupil 
Appraisal: 
District-Wide 
for all services 
rendered 



management of students with disabilities, 
. recommending equipment and providing 
training to parents and educational 
personnel. 

• Participates in special education eligibility
determinations and IBP staffing, when
appropriate

• Interprets results to parents, teachers,
principals, and other school system
personnel and assists with planning
appropriate programs for individual
students.

• Works directly with the student and family,
utilizing accepted diagnostic methods.

• Provides preventative, related, and support
services to students as appropriate,

• Establishes and maintains contact with
school personnel for the purpose of
discussing and implementing techniques of
working with students and their families
regarding the significance of occupational
therapy and physical therapy on the learning
process. ., Maintains accurate case records on all 
students including, initial screening and 
individual evaluations, and other services 
provided by the Physical Therapist in 
accordance with the requirements of local, 
state, and federal laws, regulations, and/or 
policies. 

• Completes and maintains a required
tracking system which will reflect the 
provision of services to students and 
personal accountability.

• Completes Medicaid billing for services of
students on caseload.

• Performs other such duties and assumes
such other responsibilities as assigned by 
the Special Education Supervisor

These services are to be provided under the immediate supervision of the Special Education Supervisor 

2. 

In consideration of  the services described hereinabove, COBSS hereby agrees to pay Contractor at a rate 

of  fifty-five dollars ($55.00) per hour for school Physical Therapy services for thirty-three (33) weeks not to 

exceed a total reimbursement of $27,225.00. All travel time to and from schools and travel between schools will 

be inclusive of  respective hourly rate. 

3. 

The contractor will provide an invoice to Mr. John Arrasmith, Special Education Supervisor, 

each month equal to the number of  hours/days that were worked during the month at the hourly rate agreed 

upon above. Timesheets verifying hours/days worked must be attached to each invoice along with 

service/accountability logs. Invoices should be received no later than the 5th day of the month following the 

period during which the hours were accrued. The City of Baker School System will issue a check to the 



contractor no later than 15 days after the invoice is received. If time is missed due to extenuating 

circumstances, making up missed time on a following week (within the contracted period) must be approved by 

Mr. John Arrasmith, Special Education Supervisor. 

4. 

This contract for professional school occupational therapy services is with Empower Physical Therapy 

and Wellness. and it is expected that the work will be performed personally by Empower Physical Therapy and 

Wellness. 

5. 

The contractor hereby agrees that the responsibility for payment of taxes from the funds thus 

received under this contract shall be said Contractor's obligation and identified under a Federal tax 

identification number. 

6 .. 

The Legislative Auditor the State of Louisiana and/or Office of the Governor may audit all financial and 

suit records of Contractor which relate to this contract. 

7. 

This contract is in effect for the period commencing on August 28, 2023, and terminating on May 24, 

2024. The termination date of this contract may be extended only if an amendment to that effect is duly 

executed by the contracting parties and approved by the necessary authorities prior to said termination date. 

Requests for extensions may be initiated by either party by the mailing of such request to the other party, via 

Certified Mail, return receipt requested, not less than thirty (30) days before the termination date provided for 

herein or any extension thereof. If either party informs the other that any extension of this contract is deemed 

necessary, an amendment may be prepared by the COBSS and forwarded to Contractor for appropriate action 

by Contractor, and said amendment is to be returned to the COBSS with appropriate information and signatures 

not less than fifteen (15) days prior to termination date. The amendment when received will be forwarded to the 

necessary authorities for their approval. 

8. 

The commencement of this contract is subject to and conditioned upon the availability and appropriation 

of the necessary funds, and the COBSS will have no liability or obligation to pay contractor until this 

contract ha  been approved. 

Furthermore, the continuation of this contract is contingent upon the appropriation of funds by the City 

of Baker School Board. If the City of Baker School Board fails to appropriate sufficient monies to provide for 



the continuation of this contract, the contract shall terminate on the date of the beginning of the first fiscal year 

for which funds are not appropriated, with the sole liability of the COBSS being the amounts due and owing on 

the date of cancellation due to the non-appropriation of funds. 

9. 

Contractor shall not assign any interest in this contract and shall not transfer any interest in the 

same (whether by assignment or novation), without the prior written consent of the COBSS provided however, 

the claims for moneys due or to become due to Contractor from the COBSS under this contract may be assigned 

to a bank, trust company, or other financial institution without such prior written consent. 

10. 

Either party shall have the right to cancel this contract, with or without cause, prior to the termination 

date by giving the other party thirty (30) days written notice forwarded to their respective address by certified 

mail. The COBSS has the right to cancel this contract upon less than thirty (30) days due to budgetary 

reductions, a change in funding priorities by the COBSS or cause. In the event the COBSS terminates this 

contract for cause/breach, the COBSS will pursue all remedies available to it under law. 

Notice shall be sent Certified Mail, return receipt requested, to the following addresses: 

Ifto CoBSS: 

If to Contractor: 

City of Baker School System 
James T. Stroder 
Acting Superintendent 
14750 Plank Road 
Baker, LA 70714 

Empower Physical Therapy and Wellness 
Tierra B. Williams 
PO BOX 74732 
Baton Rouge, LA. 70874 

All records, reports, documents, and other material delivered or transmitted to Contractor by the COBSS 

shall remain the property of the COBSS and shall be returned by Contractor to the COBSS at Contractor's 

expense, at termination or expiration of this contract. All records, reports, documents, or other materials related 

to this contract and/or obtained or prepared by Contractor in connection with the performance of the services 

contracted for herein shall become the property of the COBSS, and shall, upon request, be returned to the 

COBSS at Contractor's expense, at termination or expiration of this contract. 

lL 

The COBSS and Contractor acknowledge and agree that the COBSS has the right to review all records, 

reports, worksheets, or any other materials related to this contract. The COBSS and Contractor further agree to 

furnish the COBSS, upon request, copies of any and all records, reports, worksheets, bills, statements or any 



other material of Contractor or the COBSS related to this contract. Consequently, Contractor agrees that all 

records regarding this contract shall be maintained for a period of not less than three (3) years. 

12. 

Any claim or controversy arising out of this contract shall be resolved according to Louisiana law. 

13. 

Contractor agrees to abide by the requirements of the following as applicable: Title VI and VII of the 

Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended by the Equal Opportunity Act of 1972, Federal Executive Order 11246, 

the Federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, the Vietnam Era Veteran's Readjustment Assistance Act of 

1974, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, the Age Act of 1972, and Contractor agrees to abide by 

the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. 

Contractor agrees not to discriminate in its employment practices and will render services under this 

contract without regard to race, religion, sex, national origin, veteran status, political affiliation, or disabilities. 

Any act of discrimination committed by Contractor, or failure to comply with these statutory obligations 

when applicable shall be grounds for immediate termination of this contract without notice. 

14. 

The contractor shall maintain the confidentiality of any and all confidential student and/or employee information. 

15. 

For those contracts issued by the COBSS representing services to be provided using federal funding, signing this 

contract certifies that the contractor and the names of officers, directors, and any, and all employees of the 

contractor's company do not appear on the EPLS. EPLS is the electronic version of the Lists of Parties Excluded 

from Federal Procurement and Non-procurement Programs (Lists), which identifies those parties excluded 

throughout the U.S. Government (unless otherwise noted) from receiving Federal contracts or certain 

subcontracts and from certain types of Federal financial and non-financial assistance and benefits. Contractors 

may view the current list at http://epls.amet.gov/. 

16. 

Contractor receiving individual awards hereby certifies that the organization and its principals are not suspended 

or debarred from any Federal or State program. 



Contractor: Tierra B. Williams, DPT, F AAOMPT 
Empower Physical Therapy and Wellness 

Tax I D # - -  - - - - - - - - - - -

Mrs. Joyce Burgess, President 
City of Baker School System 

rcA-  
ohn Arrasmith, Special Education Supervisor 

City of Baker School System 

Mr. James T. Stroder, Acting Superintendent 
City of Baker School System 



STATE OF LOUISIANA 

EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH 

CITY OF BAKER SCHOOL SYSTEM 

CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

BE IT KNOWN THAT this agreement is entered into in the above identified Parish by and between 
The City of Baker School System, located at 14750 Plank Road, Baker, Louisiana 70714, (hereinafter 
sometimes simply referred to as "COBSS"), and Step by Step Therapeutic Services LLC and whose mailing 
address is PO BOX 54_381. Baton Roue.e, LA. 70892 (hereinafter sometimes simply referred to as 
;•contractor '). 

1. 

Contractor hereby agrees to furnish the following: 

Services to be Rendered Beneficiaries 
(topic(s), activities, follow-up, assessment, (audience - include 

Date and Time of impact on teachers and students) number of 
Li= . -Serv:ice(s) These activities should be directly linked to ()'i.;a:tiO:ll administrators, 

I ;  your School Improvement Plan (Public teachers, students 
I -   • School) and Consultation Activity Chart and/or pare'nts that  ..... -  ' -- - . 

,1 : ... :".!.:...·!, t., -  (Nonpublic/Private School) will benefit -from PD) 

August 28, 2023, through SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITIES: Pupil 
May 24, 2024 Appraisal: 

Provides virtual or face-to-face Adapted District-Wide 
Physical Education services to students of the for all services 
City of Baker School System as indicated by rendered 
evaluations and agreed upon by IEP 
committees. Maintains professional licenses to 
practice Adapted Physical Education in the 
State of Louisiana. Complete all testing, . therapeutic intervention, and documentation 
necessary to serve the student referred or 
already on the caseload, as personnel is 
available. Collects and compiles data as needed 
for the department, district, state, and federal 
reports. 

RESPONSIBILITIES/FUNCTIONS: 

• Serves as a member of a multi-disciplinary
team and provides appropriate assessments
for the identification of student's needs and
provides written reports within the required
timelines in compliance with Bulletin 1508 
guidelines and local policies and procedures

• Evaluate students with disabilities by 
performing and interpreting tests and
measurements and/or clinical observations
of neurophysiological, musculoskeletal,
sensorimotor functions and daily living
skills.

• Plans and implements treatment strategies
for students based on evaluation findings.

• Sets goals targeting improving, developing,
restoring, or maintaining functions impaired
or lost through illness, injury, or
deprivation.

• Sets goals targeting improving or
maintaining ability to perform tasks for
independent functioning when functions are
impaired or lost.



• Administers and supervises therapeutic
management of students with disabilities,
recommending equipment and providing
training to parents and educational
personnel.

• Participates in special education eligibility
determinations and IEP staffing, when
appropriate

• Interprets results to parents, teachers,
principals, and other school system
personnel and assists with planning
appropriate programs for individual
students. ,. Works directly with the student and family,
utilizing accepted diagnostic methods. 

• Provides preventative, related, and support
services to students as appropriate,

• Establishes and maintains contact with
school personnel for the purpose of
discussing and implementing techniques of
working with students and their families
regarding the significance of occupational
therapy and physical therapy on the learning
process. 

·• Maintains accurate case records on all 
students including, initial screening and 
individual evaluations, and other services 
provided by the Adapted Physical 
Education teacher in accordance with the 
requirements of local, state, and federal 
laws, regulations, and/or policies. 

• Completes and maintains a required
tracking system which will reflect the
provision of services to students and
personal accountability.

• Completes Medicaid billing for services of
students on caseload. 

·• Performs other such duties and assumes
such other responsibilities as assigned by 
the Special Education Supervisor 

These services are to be provided under the immediate supervision o f  the Special Education Supervisor 

2. 

In consideration o f  the services described hereinabove, COBSS hereby agrees to pay Contractor at a rate 

o f  seventy-five dollars ($75.00) per hour for school Adapted PhysicaLEd1.1cation ervices and one hundred and

twenty-five dollars ($125.00) to conduct evaluations, re-evaluations, and writing reports, for thirty-five (33) weeks not 

to xce d a total reimbursement o f  $62,0Q0.0Q. All travel time to and from schools and travel between schools 

will be inclusive o f  respective hourly rate. 

J. 

The contractor will provide an invoice to Mr. John Arrasmith, Special Education Supervisor, 

each month equal to the number o f  hours/days that were worked during the month at the hourly rate agreed 

upon above. Timesheets verifying hours/days worked must be attached to each invoice along with 

service/accountability logs. Invoices should be received no later than the 5th day o f  the month following the 



period during which the hours were accrued. The City of Baker School System will issue a check to the 

contractor no later than 15 days after the invoice is received. If time is missed due to extenuating 

circumstances, making up missed time on a following week (within the contracted period) must be approved by 

Mr. John Arrasmith, Special Education Supervisor. 

4. 

This contract for professional school occupational therapy services is with Step by Step Therapeutic 

Services LLC. and it is expected that the work will be performed personally by Step by Step Therapeutic 

Servi_e _S_LLC. 

5. 

The contractor hereby agrees that the responsibility for payment of taxes from the funds thus 

received under this contract shall be said Contractor's obligation and identified under a Federal tax 

identification number. 

6. 

' t h e  Legislative Auditor the State of Louisiana and/or Office of the Governor may audit all financial and 

suit records of Contractor which relate to this contract. 

7. 

- This contract is in effect for the period commencing on August 28, 2023 and terminating on May

242024. The termination date of this contract may be extended only if an amendment to that effect is duly 

executed by the contracting parties and approved by the necessary authorities prior to said termination date. 

Requests for extensions may be initiated by either party by the mailing of such request to the other party, via 

Certified Mail, return receipt requested, not less than thirty (30) days before the termination date provided for 

herein or any extension thereof. If either party informs the other that any extension of this contract is deemed 

necessary, an amendment may be prepared by the COBSS and forwarded to Contractor for appropriate action 

by Contractor, and said amendment is to be returned to the COBSS with appropriate information and signatures 

not less than fifteen (15) days prior to termination date. The amendment when received will be forwarded to the 

necessary authorities for their approval. 

8. 

The commencement of this contract is subject to and conditioned upon the availability and appropriation 

of the necessary funds, and the COBSS will have no liability or obligation to pay contractor until this 

contract has been al!J!rove_d. 



Furthermore, the continuation of this contract is contingent upon the appropriation of funds by the City 

of Baker School Board. If the City of Baker School Board fails to appropriate sufficient monies to provide for 

the continuation of this contract, the contract shall terminate on the date of the beginning of the first fiscal year 

for which funds are not appropriated, with the sole liability of the COBSS being the amounts due and owing on 

the date of cancellation due to the non-appropriation of funds. 

9. 

Contractor shall not assign any interest in this contract and shall not transfer any interest in the 

same (whether by assignment or novation), without the prior written consent of the COBSS provided however, 

the claims for moneys due or to become due to Contractor from the COBSS under this contract may be assigned 

to a bank, trust company, or other financial institution without such prior written consent. 

10. 

Either party shall have the right to cancel this contract, with or without cause, prior to the termination 

date by giving the·other party thirty (30) days written notice forwarded to their respective address by certified 

mail. The COBSS has the right to cancel this contract upon less than thirty (30) days due to budgetary 

reductions, a change in funding priorities by the COBSS or cause. In the event the COBSS terminates this 

contract f or cause/breach, the COBSS will pursue all remedies available to it under law. 

Notice shall be sent Certified Mail, return receipt requested, to the following addresses: 

Ifto CoBSS: 

Ifto Contractor: 

City of Baker School System 
James T. Stroder 
Acting Superintendent 
14750 Plank Road 
Baker, LA 70714 

Step by Step Therapeutic Services LLC. 
PO BOX 54381 
Baton Rouge, LA. 70892 

AB records, reports, documents, and other material delivered or transmitted to Contractor by the COBSS 

shall remain the property of the COBSS and shall be returned by Contractor to the COBSS at Contractor's 

expense, at termination or expiration of this contract. All records, reports, documents, or other materials related 

to this contract and/or obtained or prepared by Contractor in connection with the performance of the services 

contracted for herein shall become the property of the COBSS, and shall, upon request, be returned to the 

COBSS at Contractor's expense, at termination or expiration of this contract. 

11. 

The COBSS and Contractor acknowledge and agree that the COBSS has the right to review all records, 

reports, worksheets, or any other materials related to this contract. The COBSS and Contractor further agree to 



furnish the COBSS, upon request, copies of any and all records, reports, worksheets, bills, statements or any 

other material of Contractor or the COBSS related to this contract. Consequently, Contractor agrees that all 

records regarding this contract shall be maintained for a period of not less than three (3) years. 

12. 

Any claim or controversy arising out of this contract shall be resolved according to Louisiana law. 

13. 

Contractor agrees to abide by the requirements of the following as applicable: Title VI and VII of the 

Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended by the Equal Opportunity Act of 1972, Federal Executive Order 11246, 

the Federal·Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, the Vietnam Era Veteran's Readjustment Assistance Act of 

1974, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, the Age Act of 1972, and Contractor agrees to abide by 

the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. 

Contractor agrees not to discriminate in its employment practices and will render services under this 

contract without regard to race, religion, sex, national origin, veteran status, political affiliation, or disabilities .. 

Any ac(of discrimination committed by Contractor, or failure to comply with these statutory obligations 

when applicable shall be grounds for immediate termination of this contract without notice. 

14. 

The contractor shall maintain the confidentiality of any and all confidential student and/or employee information. 

15. 

For those contracts issued by the COBSS representing services to be provided using federal funding, signing this 

contract certifies th t the contractor and the names of officers, directors, and any, and all employees of the 

contractor's company do not appear on the EPLS. EPLS is the electronic version of the Lists of Parties Excluded 

from Federal Procurement and Non-procurement Programs (Lists), which identifies those parties excluded 

throughout the U.S. Government (unless otherwise noted) from receiving Federal contracts or certain 

subcontracts and from certain types of Federal financial and non-financial assistance and benefits. Contractors 

may view the current list at http://epls.arnet.gov/. 

16. 

Contractor receiving individual awards hereby certifies that the organization and its principals are not suspended 

or debarred from any Federal or State program. 



Contractor: Renicca Carter 
Step by Step Therapeutic Services LLC 

Tax ID# -------------

Mrs. Joyce Burgess, President 
City of Baker School System 

 ,.-c-A ,,,_,__ __ .______.;___.;"2=="  -

Mr. John Arrasmith, Special Education Supervisor 
City of Baker School System 

Mr. James T. Stroder, Acting Superintendent 
City of Baker School System 















City of Baker School System
School Board Meeting
Tuesday, September 5, 2023

Type of Item:

Lawn Care Bids

Action

Background Information:

Agenda Item:

Rotolo Consultants Services had the highest score on the Rubric of Lawn Care 
Services.

Attached Items: Contract with Rotolo Consultants













































































 
 

THE CITY OF BAKER SCHOOL SYSTEM 
Post Office Box 680 
14750 Plank Road 

Baker, Louisiana 70704-0680 
Phone (225) 774-5795 
Fax: (225) 774-5797 

www.bakerschools.org 
 
 

LAWN MAINTENANCE BID AWARD 
18-2023/2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Purchasing Department 
Alisa Sibley, 
City of Baker School System 

 
 
 

http://www.bakerschools.org/


City of Baker School System 
  Post Office Box 680 
      Baker, Louisiana 70704-0680 

                     Phone (225) 774-5795 
              Fax (225) 774-5797 
          www.bakerschools.org 

 
BID AWARD SUMMARY 

 BID TITLE:  LAWN MAINTENANCE BID No. 18 2023/2024 

 BID NUMBER: 18 – 2023/2024 
 
 BID DUE:  August 21, 2023 at 1:00 p.m.  
 
 BID OPENING: August 24, 2023 at 2:00 p.m.  
    City of Baker School Board  
    14750 Plank Road  
    Baker, Louisiana 70714 

CONTRACT TERM: September 05, 2023 through June 30, 2024 (Pending Board Approval). 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 1000263080000700 74240 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  September 05, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
ADVERTISEMENT DATES: July 19th , August 07th and August 14th  
 
NUMBER OF VENDOR RESPONSES: 4 
 
BID DISQUALIFICATIONS: 1 ROBILLARDS, LLC    
 
REASONS FOR DISQUALIFIED VENDORS:  Returned Bid Proposal Information Incomplete 
  
              RUBRIC          PRICE 
 
QUALIFIED VENDORS: 3      ROTOLO CONSULTANTS           88    $100,778.38  

   MCC LANDSCAPE & LAWN, LLC           77                $103,600.00 
   CORPORATE GREEN DBA GREEN SEASONS       62    $154,218.00 

                  
 
RECOMMENDATION: listed below, based on the best responsive point scores according  
      to the Rubric Scale. 
 
BID AWARD VENDOR      RUBRIC SCORE      PRICE           
ROTOLO CONSULTANTS, INC                  88                               $100,778.38 
 
Explanations: Award of this contract will enable the City of Baker School Board System to use Rotolo Consultants, Inc. 

services during the contract term, with a possible one (1) year extension if all parties agree to original 
pricing and terms of contract. 

  
 The City of Baker School System reserves the right to reject any or all proposals whenever such rejection is 

in its best interest in accordance with law. The provisions and requirements of this advertisement shall not 
be waived.  

 
The City of Baker School System does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, gender, age or qualified disability 

 

http://www.bakerschools.org/


Administrative, Instructional and Support Staff Positions 
September 5, 2023 

 
 
 

I. Report of Resignations 
 

1. Ms. Genesis Blake – Bus Operator (6-Hr) District Wide, personal, effective 
08/15/2023 

 
2. Mr. Armer Bright – Baker High SPED Teacher (7-Hr), personal, effective 

08/28/2023 
 

II. Report of Appointments 
 

1. Ms. Martina Domino– Instructional Coach, Baker Heights, effective 07/31/2023 
 

2. Dr. Meshell Ellison-Hill – Assistant Principal, Baker High effective 07/24/2023 
 

3. Mr. Terrance Tyler- Math Teacher (6th-8th), PRAMS/BMS effective 08/07/2023 
 
4. Ms. Latricia Banks - Math Teacher (6th-8th), PRAMS/BMS effective 08/07/2023 
 
5. Ms. Zakeyra Golden- Pre-k Teacher, Baker Heights, effective 08/07/2023 

 
6. Ms. Chantelle Brady – Pre-k Teacher, Baker Heights, effective 08/07/2023 

 
7. Ms. Mia Vessell – 2nd Grade Teacher, Baker Heights, effective 08/07/2023 

 
8. Ms. MiAngel Nichols – 1st Grade Teacher, Baker Heights, effective 08/07/2023 

 
9. Ms. Stephanie Patten, Literacy Coach, Baker High/PRAMS, effective 08/16/2023 

 
10. Ms. Denise, Muldrew, Bus Operator, District Wide, effective 08/16/2023 

 
11. Mr. Skylar Dickerson, Custodian, Baker Heights, effective 08/22/2023 

 
12. Ms. Cesia Calix- EL Support, Baker High, effective 08/31/2023 

 
13. Ms. Barbara Lands – Part Time Receptionist, effective 08/08/2023 

 
14. Mr. Cameron Stelly– Part Time Receptionist, effective 08/08/2023 

 
15. Dr. Kimberly Gales-Johnson, Human Resources Supervisor & K-5 Supervisor, 

District Office, September 5, 2023 
 
  



Louisiana Attendance Alliance Enhanced Implementation Project 
City of Baker School District 

© 2023 LSU, Social Research & Evaluation Center | 1 
 

 

PROJECT SCOPE 

Why we want to do this work: Improving Chronic Absenteeism & School-going Culture 
1. Demonstrated need—22-23 Attendance Data: 798 students at 7+ absences; 471 at 20+. 
2. Align with Mr. Stroder’s vision for City of Baker School District: (1) Recruit & retain excellent educators; (2) Get students to 
school to benefit from excellent teaching and learning. 
3. Inspire districts across State to build attendance intervention systems of support. 

 

What we want to accomplish: Project Goals 
Build capacity in schools & district to provide evidence-based tiered attendance interventions systematically and with fidelity. 
Build capacity in families to assist in building community and positive attendance culture. 

 

When we will accomplish it: Timeline 
2023-2024 School Year 

 

How we will accomplish it: Materials & Services 
Attendance Action Planning Workbook:  
 - leadership team development;  
 - multi-tiered system of supports (MTSS) development;  
 - needs assessments & gap analysis 
Family needs assessments  
Self-study 

 

How will we know when it is working: Measures 
Improved attendance rates – all groups 
Improved school climate assessment  
Recurring multi-tiered system of supports (MTSS) meetings 

 

Attendance Alliance Action Planning Resources 

https://tinyurl.com/LouisianaAttendancePlanning 

https://tinyurl.com/LouisianaAttendancePlanning


Louisiana Attendance Alliance Enhanced Implementation Project 
City of Baker School District 

© 2023 LSU, Social Research & Evaluation Center | 2 
 

 

PROJECT TIMELINE 

 
 
 
 



Louisiana Attendance Alliance Enhanced Implementation Project 
City of Baker School District 

© 2023 LSU, Social Research & Evaluation Center | 3 
 

 
ROLES & RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
 



Louisiana Attendance Alliance Enhanced Implementation Project 
City of Baker School District 

© 2023 LSU, Social Research & Evaluation Center | 4 
 

 
LSU SREC TEAM: STAFF 

 
• Judith Rhodes, PhD, LMSW: Director & Professor of Research, LSU Social Research & Evaluation Center, jrhode9@lsu.edu 
• Gwen Murray, PhD, Project Lead: Research Associate, LSU Social Research & Evaluation Center, gmurray1@lsu.edu  
• Jada Thomas-Smith, MPA, MSW, LMSW: Research Associate, LSU Social Research & Evaluation Center, jtsmith@lsu.edu  
• Sarah Harrell, MSNPA, MSW, LMSW: Research Associate, LSU Social Research & Evaluation Center, sharrell@lsu.edu  
• Bich Do, MA, EdS, NCSP: Research Associate, LSU Social Research & Evaluation Center, bdo@lsu.edu  
 

LSU TEAM: GRADUATE STUDENTS 
• Lila Mount, MSW Intern 
• Grace Blyth, School Psychology Doctoral Student 
• Megan Z. Plant, School Psychology Doctoral Student 

 
 

 
 
 

mailto:jrhode9@lsu.edu
mailto:gmurray1@lsu.edu
mailto:jtsmith@lsu.edu
mailto:sharrell@lsu.edu
mailto:bdo@lsu.edu


City of Baker School System
School Board Meeting
Tuesday, September 5, 2023

Type of Item:

Policy B-4 Officers of the Board

Information

La. Rev. Stat. Ann. 17-54

Background Information:

Agenda Item:

This is still the time of year when we are reviewing policies as they relate to the State 
Code. Policy B-4 deals with the Election of Officers. It needs to be updated to more 
closely match La. Rev. Stat. Ann. 17-54. I would recommend leaving it as a yearly 
Election to be held in January.

Attached Items: 
Policy B-4 with Suggested Change



2022 Louisiana Laws 

Revised Statutes 

Title 17 - Education 

§17:54. Officers of boards, election; superintendents, qualifications, appointment and removal 

Universal Citation: LA Rev Stat § 17:54 (2022) 

RS 17:54 - Officers of boards, election; superintendents, qualifications, appointment and removal 

 

A. A city or parish school board shall elect from among its members a president and a vice president and 
fix the terms of office not to exceed four years. 

 

B.(1)(a) Notwithstanding the provisions of R.S. 42:3, each city, parish, and other local public school 
board shall elect a superintendent of schools, having such qualifications as may be fixed by the State 
Board of Elementary and Secondary Education, for a period not to exceed four years, which period, 
however, may extend no longer than two years after the expiration of the term of office of the 
membership of the board electing the superintendent. The election of a superintendent of schools by a 
city, parish, or other local public school board shall require the favorable vote of a majority of the entire 
membership of the school board. A superintendent of schools shall not be required to be a qualified 
elector or a resident of the political subdivision comprising the school system in which he is to serve as 
superintendent. He shall be required to devote his entire time to the office of superintendent of schools. 

 

(b)(i)(aa) The superintendent of schools shall be employed by a city, parish, or other local public school 
board pursuant to a written contract. Such contract shall contain but need not be limited to specific 
performance objectives. However, for the board of a local public school system that received any 
variation of a school performance letter grade of "C", "D", or "F", such contract shall establish 
performance targets at the school and district level as follows: (1) student achievement; (2) student 
achievement for schools that have received any variation of a school performance letter grade 
designation of "C", "D", or "F"; (3) graduation rates; (4) graduation rates for schools that have received 
any variation of a school performance letter grade designation of "C", "D", or "F"; and (5) the percentage 
of teachers with an "effective" or "highly effective" performance rating. Not less than thirty days prior to 
the termination of such a contract, the school board shall notify the superintendent of termination of 
employment under such contract, or in lieu thereof the board and the superintendent may negotiate 
and enter into a contract for subsequent employment. 

 

(bb) Each local public school board shall submit a copy of its current employment contract with the 
superintendent of schools to the state superintendent of education. 

 



(cc) A local public school board shall notify the state superintendent of education any time it terminates 
or fails to renew its employment contract with the local school superintendent, along with the reasons 
therefor. 

 

(dd) Any employment contract executed, negotiated, or renegotiated after July 1, 2012, between a local 
school board and a superintendent that does not meet the requirements established in this Subsection 
shall be null and void. 

 

(ii)(aa) The superintendent may choose not to enter into a subsequent contract and may either 
terminate his employment or, if he has acquired permanent status as a teacher, resume employment as 
a teacher. 

 

(bb) The school board, in accordance with the provisions of this Subparagraph, may choose not to offer 
a subsequent contract to the superintendent. 

 

(iii) The superintendent shall be retained during the term of a contract; however, if the superintendent 
is found incompetent, unworthy, or inefficient or is found to have failed to fulfill the terms and 
performance objectives of his contract or to comply with school board policy, then the superintendent 
shall be removed from office as provided by Subsection C of this Section. Before the superintendent can 
be removed during the contract period, he shall have the right to written charges and a fair hearing 
before the board after reasonable written notice. 

 

(iv) Subject to the approval of a majority of its entire membership, the board shall negotiate and offer 
the superintendent a new contract at the expiration of each existing contract unless a majority of the 
membership of the board votes at least ninety days prior to the termination of the existing contract 
against offering a new contract. 

 

(v) Repealed by Acts 2010, No. 720, §2, eff. Jan. 1, 2011. 

 

(2) Prior to filling a vacancy in the position of permanent superintendent of schools, each city and parish 
school board shall advertise the vacancy and solicit applications for the position. At a minimum, the 
school board shall publish a notice of the vacancy together with a request for the submission of 
applications to fill the position in accordance with all of the following: 

 

(a) On two separate days at least one week apart in the official journal of the school board. 



 

(b) Once in a daily newspaper published in the metropolitan area in the state having a population in 
excess of one hundred thousand persons that is nearest to the school board offices, if such newspaper is 
not the official journal of the school board. 

 

(3) All publication requirements provided in this Subsection shall be completed at least thirty days prior 
to action by the school board to fill the position. 

 

(4)(a) The board may, by a majority vote of its membership, select a person to serve as interim 
superintendent in the event of the death, resignation, or termination of the superintendent or his being 
placed on paid administrative leave in accordance with Subsection D of this Section. 

 

(b) An interim superintendent shall have the same authority as a superintendent. 

 

(c) The election of an interim superintendent is not subject to the provisions applicable to the process of 
selection or employment of a superintendent or to the requirement or content of a contract. 

 

(d) A school board shall not employ an interim superintendent for longer than six months in any given 
twelve month period unless the appointment is made during the final year of the term of the majority of 
members. 

 

C. A city, parish, or other local public school system superintendent may be removed from office for 
cause prior to the expiration of his contract by the concurring vote of at least two-thirds of the 
membership of the entire school board at any regular meeting or at any special meeting after due 
notice. 

 

D.(1) A school board may place a superintendent on paid administrative leave prior to the expiration of 
his contract: 

 

(a) For the purpose of investigating cause for termination. 

 

(b) Without cause during the final three months of the term of his contract when the school board has 
voted not to extend a new contract offer. 



 

(c) At a time as agreed by the superintendent. 

 

(d) At a time as provided for in his contract. 

 

(2) Paid administrative leave is subject to the following: 

 

(a) Approval of a majority of the membership of the school board. 

 

(b) A three-month time limit within a six-month period. 

 

(c) All compensation afforded under the terms of the existing contract. 

 

Acts 1990, No. 1005, §1, eff. July 26, 1990; Acts 1998, 1st Ex. Sess., No. 107, §1, eff. July 1, 1998; Acts 
1999, No. 857, §1; Acts 2005, No. 482, §1, eff. July 1, 2005; Acts 2010, No. 720, §§1, 2, eff. Jan. 1, 2011; 
Acts 2012, No. 1, §1, eff. July 1, 2012; Acts 2020, No. 292, §1. 

 

NOTE: See Acts 1998, 1st Ex. Sess., No. 107, §2 relative to prospective application of Act. 



FILE: B-4 
 
Cf: A-6  
 
OFFICERS OF THE BOARD  
 
The City of Baker School Board shall elect at its annual meeting in January each year, one of its 
members to serve as President and one to serve as Vice-President. The President shall not be eligible 
to succeed himself/herself, nor shall he/she be eligible for reelection as President for two (2) years 
after the expiration of the term as President for which he/she was elected. The President shall preside 
at all meetings of the Board and shall call special meetings when required. He/she shall sign with the 
Superintendent, the minutes and other official documents which require the signature of the 
President. He/she shall perform other duties as prescribed by law or Board policy. In the absence of 
the President or in the event of his or her death, or his or her inability or failure to act, the Vice-
President shall perform the duties of the President and, when so acting, shall have all the powers of 
the President. If the President and Vice-President are absent from a meeting at which a quorum is 
present, the Superintendent shall preside until the members elect one of their members to serve as 
President for that meeting.  
 
The Superintendent shall serve as the secretary and treasurer of the Board. As secretary, he/she shall 
conduct all correspondence of the Board, keep and preserve all its records, receive all reports 
required by the Board, and see that such reports are in proper form, complete and accurate. He/she 
shall announce all meetings, prepare the agenda of all meetings, and attend all meetings of the Board 
and of its committees. In case the secretary is absent, the Board may appoint another member of the 
Board, or other school personnel under the jurisdiction of said Board to act as secretary.  
 
As treasurer, the Superintendent shall have the authority to sign and execute any and all documents 
associated with all transactions duly approved by the Board. He/she shall also be designated as the 
official custodian of all funds to which the Board is entitled by law and shall be responsible for the 
proper safeguarding and accounting for all such funds.  
 
The treasurer shall issue a receipt for any monies coming into his or her hands and deposit such 
monies in accordance with the laws governing the deposit of public funds. He/she shall issue such 
warrants in payment of expenses lawfully incurred on behalf of the School Board, but except as 
otherwise provided by law, shall issue such warrants only after proper allowance or approval by the 
Board.  
 
For each school year, the treasurer shall give a bond for the faithful performance of duties; said bond 
to be written by an insurance company licensed to do business in the State of Louisiana and in an 
amount to be determined by the Board. The treasurer shall be responsible under such bond for the 
faithful performance of duties as treasurer. The Board shall pay the premium of the bond. Ref: La.  
 
 
Rev. Stat. Ann. §§17:54, 17:55, 17:56, 17:72, 17:81, 17:83, 17:91, 17:95  
City of Baker School District 



Baker 
Heights 

Elementary 
School

Baker High 
School

Baker 
Middle 
School

Bakerfield Park Ridge 
Academic 
Magnet 
School

Baker 
Alternative

Jcampus 
Total No shows

Actual 
Total

Decrease/
Increase

8/29/2010 378 492 381 295 345 1891 7 1884
8/29/2011 396 444 457 327 215 1839 7 1832 -52
8/29/2012 376 461 459 296 181 1773 15 1758 -74
8/29/2013 388 438 420 259 174 1679 9 1670 -88
8/29/2014 286 490 273 169 259 1477 15 1462 -208
8/29/2015 261 504 253 170 245 1433 12 1421 -41
8/29/2016 256 509 236 203 241 1445 11 1434 13
8/29/2017 225 545 230 180 226 1406 19 1387 -47
8/29/2018 200 491 210 207 194 1302 14 1288 -99
8/29/2019 398 467 222 209 1296 19 1277 -11
8/29/2020 331 443 188 176 1138 74 1064 -213
8/29/2021 343 385 142 119 989 34 955 -109
8/29/2022 339 350 133 112 934 24 910 -45
8/29/2023 389 326 135 132 1008 26 982 72


	09-05-2023  Board Agenda
	E.1 Board Meeting Minutes
	E.1a August Board Minutes

	E.2 Property Insurance
	E.2a PROPERTY RENEWAL 2023-2024

	E.3 Operating Budget
	E.3a 2023-2024 Operating Budget

	E.4 Legal Settlement
	E.4a Sedgewick Claim

	E.5 ESS Contracts
	E.5a CONTRACT - EMPOWER PHYSICAL THERAPY AND WELLNESS (UNEXECUTED) - PENDING
	E.5b APE Contract
	E.5c Homebound-Gifted Contract

	E.6 Lawn Care
	E.6a ROTOLO CONSULTANTS INC
	E.6b LAWN SERVICE BID AWARD SUMMARY 23-24

	Personnel Report
	LSU Attendance
	F.3  Policy B-4
	F.3a La. Rev. Stat. Ann. 17-54
	F.3b B-4 Officers of the Board Recommendation

	H.1 Enrollment Count Comparison 8-7



